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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

1 
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 

600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. 1 
Washinson, D.C. 20580 1 

1 Civil No. 
1 

Plaintiff, 1 
1 

v. 1 

BLOCKBUSTER, INC., 
1 

Defendant ) 

COMPLAINT FOR JNJUNCTIVE B L I E F  PURSUANT 
TO SECTION 7A(g)(2) OF THE CLAYTON ACT AND 

SECTION 13@) OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT 

Pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2) of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 18a(g)(2), and Section 13@) 

of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 53(b), the Federal Trade Commission 

("Commission"), by its undersigned attorneys, seeks a temporary restraining order, injunction, 

and order pursuant to Section 7A(g)(23 enjoining the acquisition by defendant Blockbuster, Inc. 

("Blockbuster") of any interest in Hollywood Entertainment Corporation ("Hollywood"), until 

Bloclcbuster has substantially complied with the premerger notification reporting requirements 

set forth in Section 7A of the Clayton Act. 

Jurisdiction and Venue 

1. This is a statutory cause of action against a party who failed to file a sufficient 

premerger submission in this district. This Court has jurisdiction over the defendants and over 



the subject matter of this action pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2) of the Clayton Act, Section 13(b) of 

the FTC Act, and 28 U.S.C. $5 1331,1337,1345. 

2. Venue is proper pursuant to Section 12 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 22, and 28 

U.S.C. 5 1391(b), and (c), because the cause of action arose in this district, where Bloclcbuster 

failed to make a complete response to the Commission's Request for Additional Information. 

The Parties 

3. .The Commission is an administrative agency of the United States government 

with its principal offices at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW., Washington, D.C. 20580. The 

Commission is charged, inter alia, with administering the premerger notification and waiting 

period requirements of Section 7A of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 18a, and enforcing Section 7 

of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 18, and Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 45, by preventing 

acquisitions that may substantially lessen competition in any line of commerce in any section of 

the country. The Commission also is authorized to seek preliminary injunctions whenever it has 

reason to believe these laws are being violated (FTC Act 5 I?@), 15 U.S.C. 5 53), and to enforce 

the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitmst Improvement Act's reporting and waiting period requirements 

(Clayton Act 5 7A; 15 U.S.C. 5 18a). 

4. Bloclcbuster is incorporated in the State of Delaware with its principal place of 

business in Texas. Blockbuster is the largest movie and video game rental outlet in the United 

States. It operates approximately 4,600 company stores across the United States, and franchises 

approximately 1,800 additional store locations. Blockbuster estimates its U.S. revenues for fiscal 

year 2004 at $4.2 billion. 



The Cause of Action 

5. On December 28,2004, Bloclcbuster announced its intention to launch a cash 

tender offer to purchase all of the outstanding shares of Hollywood in a transaction valued at 

approximately $1 billion (including Blockbuster's assumption of Hollywood debt outstanding).' 

Hollywood is a leading United States movie and video game rental outlet, second only to 

Bloclcbuster in revenues. Hollywood operates nearly 2,000 store locations in the United States, 

and estimates its U.S. revenues for fiscal 2004 at $1.8 billion. 

6. Section 7A(a) of the Clayton Act, as amended by Pub. L. 106-553, 114 Stat. 2762 

("2000 Amendments"), requires persons with more than $100 million in total assets or net sales 

to file premerger notification reports with the Commission before acquiring, directly or in- 

directly, more than $50 million in voting securities or assets of any person engaged in 

manufacturing with total assets or annual net sales of $10 million. As part of the Notification 

and Report Form required by Section 7A, an officer of the filing party must certify that the filing 

is "true, correct, and complete in accordance with the statute and rules." See 16 C.F.R. 5 803.6. 

7. Section 7A(b) provides that upon filing a premerger notification report, a party 

wishing to make an acquisition must delay consummating the transaction for at least 30 days (15 

in the case of a pure cash tender offer) in order to give the Commission an opportunity to review 

the transaction and determine whether to investigate the transaction further or challenge it. 

1 Blockbuster has modified or supplemented its offer twice since its original 
announcement. On February 2,2005, it announced that it was raising its initial offer of $11.50 
per share (payable in cash) to $14.50 (payable in a combination of $11.50 in cash and $3.00 in 
Blockbuster stock). On February 11,2005, it announced the commencement of a tender offer to 
purchase for cash $225 million in debt previously issued by Hollywood. 



8. Section 7A(e) provides that, during the initial waiting period, the Commission 

may request additional information or documentary material relevant to the proposed transaction 

(a "Second Request"). The effect of making such a request for additional information is to 

extend the waiting period for consummation of the acquisition until 30 days (10 days in the case 

of a cash tender offer) after the date on which the Commission receives a complete response to 

its request for additional information. Id.; 16 C.F.R. 803.20(c). A complete response is one 

that either: (a) sets forth all the information and provides all the documentary material required to 

be submitted pursuant to the request; or (b) in the event a person is unable to provide a complete 

response, a detailed statement of reasons for non-compliance in accordance with 16 C.F.R. 8 

803.3. Section 7A(e)(2) further provides that if a proper submission is made under that Section, 

the thirty-day waiting period extension begins, although it may be further extended by a United 

States diskict court on application by the Commission pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2), if the 

acquiring person (in the case of a tender offer) has not substantially complied with the request for 

additional information. AU submissions of additional information and documentary material 

must be filed where designated by the Commission or, if no designation is made, with the 

Commission's Pre-Merger Office in Washington, DC. 

9. Blockbuster's proposed acquisition of Hollywood is a reportable transaction under 

Section 7A. 

10. On December 28,2004, Blockbuster filed a premerger Notification antl Report 

Form in connection with its announced intention to launch a tender offer for the outstanding 

shares of Hollywood. As part of that filing, Edward B. Stead, Blockbuster's Executive Vice- 

President and General Counsel, certified that the filing was "true, correct, and complete." 



The Commission's Second Request 

11. On January 12,2005, the Commission, pursuant to Section 7A(e)(l) of the 

Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 18a(e)(l), and 16 C.F.R. 5 803.20, issued to Blockbuster a Second 

Request. The fnst paragraph of the Commission's request informed Bloclcbuster that "[ilf the 

company believes that the required search or any other part of the Request can be narrowed in 

any way that is consistent with the Commission's need for documents and information, you are 

encouraged to discuss such questions and possible modifications with the Commission 

representative identified on the last page of this Request." 

12. Included within this Second Request was Specification 17, which required 

Blockbuster to produce specific categories of data for each company store relating to, i i z t e ~  alia, 

each store's pricing, non-price terms, incentive programs, late fees, membership fees, discounts, 

and other benefits offered to customers. 

13. The Second Request also contained Instruction W, which instructed Bloclcbuster 

to indicate for each question it is unable to answer fully, "why such answer is incomplete, the 

efforts made by the company to obtain the information, and the source from which the complete 

answer may be obtained." The purpose of Instruction W is to allow Blockbuster to explain why 

it did not provide certain information in response to the Second Request, in a way that the 

Commission staff reviewing the response can rely upon in assessing Bloclcbuster's compliance 

with the Second Request. 

Bloclcbuster's Resaonse to the Second Reauest 

14. On February 4,2004, Blockbuster, through its Vice-president and Senior 

Corporate Counsel, Judy C. Nonis, certified under oath, pursuant to 16 C.F.R. 5 803.6, that it 



had substantially complied with the Commission's Second Request by submitting the 

information and materials specified in the Second Request. 

15. In the course of reviewing Blockbuster's response to the Second Request, the 

Commission staff discovered that Blockbuster's response to the Second Request was incomplete 

in multiple respects. Most si,@icant, in terms of its impact on the Commission's investigation, 

Blockbuster, in its response to Specification 17(a) of the Second Request, provided incorrect 

information relating to pricing, in the fonn of rental fees, at specific Blockbuster stores. As a 

result of a Blockbuster "progamming error," more than 60,000 of the approximately 120,000 

data points contained in Blockcbuster's original dataset were inaccurate. The Commission's 

economics staff had relied on that data to try to use econometric analyses to assess the likely 

competitive effects of the acquisition in order to guide the Commission's decision-making 

process in connection with the proposed acquisition. However, all of the statistical analysis that 

Commission staff had performed using that pricing data was fatally flawed, and therefore useless 

to the Commission. 

16. Commission staff identified to Blockcbuster's counsel, in an oral conversation on 

February 16, the "discrepancies" in the data that Blockbuster had provided. Counsel for 

Blockbuster thereafter admitted, in an e-mail message datedFebruary 22,2005 that "a 

programming error was made in collectmg the specification 17 data, so that it is inaccurate." 

Blockbuster counsel attached revised data responsive to specification 17(a) to that same e-mail 

message on February 22,2005 - 18 days after certifying that it was in substantial compliance 

with the Second Request. While updating its response to now include the presumably correct 



pricing data, Blockbuster did not re-certify its substantial compliance to reflect the date on which 

it had actually submitted accurate pricing data in response to Specification 17(a). 

17. In addition to the deficiencies in response to Specification 17(a), Blockbuster 

failed to provide complete responses to several other Specifications of the Second Request. For 

example, subpart (e) of Specification 17 requires the production of data regarding "any late fees 

applied to late returns of rentals" for "each company store." Blockbuster's response to 

Specification 17(e), however, only provided data for approximately 400 of the approximately 

4,600 company stores it operates in the United States. Only in a submission of late March 1, 

2005, has Blockbuster provided what appears to be the complete data in response to 

Specification 17(e). The original data dislc produced by Blockbuster contained 2.8 megabytes of 

data and had approximately 65,000 data rows. The disk submitted on March 1 contained 96 

megabytes of data and approximately 873,000 data rows. The original data disk, therefore, was 

missing over 800,000 rows of responsive information. 

18. Timely submission of the pricing information required by Specification 17(a) and 

17(e) is critical to the Commission's economic analysis of the potential competitive effects of 

Blockbuster's proposed acquisition. The type of econometric analyses that the Commission's 

staff have applied in this investigation are complex, and require substantial Commission 

resources. The accurate pricing data that Blockbuster did not provide until February 22 is highly 

probative information to that analysis. The result of Blockbuster's failure to provide the accurate 

data, combined with its theory that its initial submission constituted substantial compliance, 

would be to reduce, by over half, the statutory period that Congress has provided to the 

Commission to use the information it is entitled to obtain from Blockbuster. 



19. During the time that the Commission would have had if Blockbuster's submission 

of data in response to Specification 17(a) and 17(e) had been timely, the Commission would be 

able to conduct the complex economic analyses that would help inform its decision making in 

connection with Blockbuster's proposed acquisition of Hollywood. Because of Blockbuster's 

serious errors, however, the Commission has not yet had a sufficient opportunity to complete 

these analyses. 

The Commission's Two Notices of Deficiencies 

20. After reviewing Bloclcbuster's response to the Second Request, Commission staff 

notified Blockbuster's counsel in two letters, both dated February 24,2005, of the numerous 

deficiencies, including Blockbuster's failure to comply with Specification 17(a) and 17(e), that 

had been identified in the Second Request. Each of those letters clearly states that it constitutes a 

notice of deficiency under 16 C.F.R. 803.10(~)(2), and that therefore the statuto~y waiting periods 

specified in 16 C.F.R. $5 803.10(b)(2)(i) has not begun. 

Blockbuster's Response to the Two Notices 

21. In response to the Commission's letters, Bloclcbuster counsel delivered to the 

Commission on February 28 a letter challenging the Commission's position that Blockbuster was 

not in substantial compliance with the Second Request. With respect to its untimely response to 

Specification 17(a), for example, Blockbuster took the position that the Commission had not 

been prejudiced by its failure to provide store pricing data on a timely basis, stating that it "defies 

imagination that the staff has been so impeded in the investigation that a court should find that 

Blockbuster was not in substantial compliance with its original February 4 response." 



22. Bloclcbuster on March 2,2005, filed an appeal with the Commission's General 

Counsel, pursuant to Section 2.20 of the Commission's Rules of Practice, 16 C.F.R. $ 2.20, of 

the notices of deficiency that Blockbuster had received from the Commission's representatives. 

In its March 3,2005 response to that appeal, the Commission's General Counsel stated that 

Blockbuster was not in substantial compliance at least until it had corrected its failures to submit 

accurate data. 

Bloclbuster Has Not Comolied With Its L e d  Oblieations 

23. By failing to provide complete and accurate information responsive to 

Commission Specification 17 (as well as other Specifications), Blockbuster has not complied 

with the premerger reporting obligations set out in Section 7A(e)(2) and 16 C.F.R. 5 803.20. 

24. Section 7A(g)(2) of the Clayton Act provides that if any person fails substantially 

to comply with the notification requirement of Section 7A(a) or any request for the submission of 

additional information or documentary material pursuant to Section 7A(e)(l), a United States 

district court, upon application of the Commission, "shall extend the waiting period ... until there 

has been substantial compliance." Section 7A(g)(2) further provides that, upon application, the 

district court "may order compliance" and "may grant such other equitable relief as the court in 

its discretion determines necessary or appropriate." 

25. As noted above, Blockcbuster has refused to recertify both its original Notification 

and Report Form and its substantial compliance with the Second Request. Moreover, counsel for 
* 

Bloclbuster has refused even to acknowledge the deficient character of its certification. 

26. Blockbuster has stated in the press, and has stated to the Commission, its intention 

to effect its proposed acquisition of Hollywood as soon as possible, indicating that unless the 



Commission takes action by m~d-March Blockbuster will go ahead with its acquisition and force 

the Commission to bring suit to stop the transaction. This timing is based on Blockbuster's 

February 4 certification which, if unchallenged, would result in a termination of the statutory 

waiting period on March 7,2005. 

27. Thus, unless enjoined by this Court, Blockbuster may acquire Hollywood as early 

as March 8,2005. Accordingly, a temporary restraining order and an injunction enjoining 

consummation are necessary to ensure compliance with the requirements of Section 7A of the 

Clayton Act and to give the Commission and its staff the time provided by Consess for 

evaluation of the proposed acquisition. 

WHEiREFORE, the Commission prays for an order: 

a. Enjoining Blockbuster from acquiring, directly or indirectly, any interest in 

Hollywood until Blockbuster has conducted a thorough search for responsive material and 

recertified its original Notification and Report Form, provided all responsive information sought 

by the Commission in the Second Request, recertified its substantial compliance with the 

Commission's Second Request, and complied with the statutory waiting period required by 

Section 7A of the Clayton Act; and 

b. Awarding such other relief as this Court shall deem just and appropriate. 



Respectfully Submitted, 

John D. Graubert @.C. Bar No. 370670) 
Acting General Counsel 

Susan Creighton, Director 
Bureau of Competition 

Director of Litigation 

Michael H. Knight 
Assistant Director 

Bureau of Competition 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, DC 20580 
(202) 326-2475 



UNlTED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

mDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 
Plaintiff, 

BLOCKBUSTER, INC., 
Defendant. 

PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR ORDER DIRECTING THE FlLING UNDER 
SEAL OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS 

Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission, respectFully moves this Court for an order, 

pursuant to LCvR 5.161, directing the Clerk of the Court to file under seal, until further order, the 

following documents which this day plaintiff is filing in support of its motion: 

(1) Plaintiffs Statement of Points and Authorities 
in Support of Plaintiff's Motion for TRO and for an 
Order Pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2) of the Clayton 
Act: and 

(2) Attachments thereto; and 

(3) Exhibits in support thereof. 

The purpose of this motion is to provide confidential treatment for the aforesaid documents until 

defendants and any third parties that supplied information disclosed in the documents have been 

notified of the Commission's filing and have had an opportunity to consider whether the 



documents that were previously provided to the Commission as confidential are entitled to 

continued "under seal" protection. 

This motion is supported by an accompanying statement of points and authorities and a 

proposed order. 

Respectfully submitted, 

John D. Graubert (DC Bar# 370670) 
Acting General Counsel 

Susan A. Creighton 
Director 

Director of Litigation 

Michael H. Knight 
Assistant Director 

Bureau of Competition 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 
(202) 326-2475 

March 4,2005 



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

I 
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,) 

Plaintiff, 
1 Civil No. 

V. 

1 
BLOCKBUSTER, INC., 1 

' 1 
Defendant. ) 

CERTIZICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Michael Bloom, hereby certify that on March 4,2005, I caused one copy of the 

Federal Trade Commission's Motion For Order Directing the Filing Under Seal of Certain 

Documents to be served via electronic mail on Counsel for Defendant Bloclcbuster, Inc., Wayne 

Dale Collins, Esq. at wcollins@shearman.com. 

Director of Litigation 
Bureau of Competition 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pe~sylvania  Ave., N.W. 
Washington, D. C. 20580 
(202) 326-2475 



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

1 
1 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 1 
Plaintiff, 1 

1 
v. 1 Civil No. 

1 
1 

BLOCKBUSTER, INC., 1 
Defendant. ) 

1 

PROPOSED] 
ORDER DIRECTWG THE FlLWG UNDER SEAL 

OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS 

Upon consideration of plaintiff's motion for an order, pursuant to LCvR 5.101, directing 

the filing of certain documents under seal, 

lT IS HEREBY ORDERED that "Plaintiff's Statement of Points and Authorities in 

Support of Plaintiffs Motion for a TRO and for an Order Pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2) of the 

Clayton Act and Section 13(b) of the Federal Trade Commission Act" and Plaintiffs 

Attachments wdExhibits accompanied with said Statement be filed under seal until further order 

of the Coua. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that plaintiff Federal Trade Commission may at any time 

file on the public record a duplicate copy of the Statement that does not reveal confidential 

material. Confidential material includes material and information contained therein that is 

defined or treated as confidential under Rule 2G(c)(7) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, 

Section 6(f),21(b) or 2l(c) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. @ 46(f), 57b-2(b), 



57b-2(c), Commission Rule 4.10(d), 16 C.F.R. 5 4.10(d), or Section 7A(h) of the Clayton Act, 

15 U.S.C. 8 18a(h). The identity of a third party submitting such confidential material also shall 

be treated as confidential material for the purposes of this Order if the third party has requested 

such confidential treatment. 

United States District Judge 
Dated: 

Presented by: 

John D. Graubert (DC Bar# 370670) 
Acting General Counsel 

Susan A. Creighton 
Director 

Michael J. Bloom 
Director of Litigation 

Michael H. Knight 
Assistant Director 

Bureau of competition 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 
(202) 326-2475 



ATTORNEYS ENTITLED TO NOTICE 

Michael J. Bloom, Esq. 
Federal Trade Commission 

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 

(202) 3326-2475 

counsel for Federal Trade Commission 

Wayne Dale Collins, Esq. 
Shearman & Sterling 

599 Lexington Avenue, 
New York City, New York 10022-4000 

counsel for Blockbuster Inc. 



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

1 
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 1 

1 
Plaintif[, 1 

1 Civil No. 
v. 1 

1 
BLOCKBUSTER, INC., 1 

I 
Defendant. ) 

PLAINTIFF'S MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 
IN SUPPORT OF MOTION DIRECTING THE FILING 

UNDER SEAL OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS 

The Federal Trade Commission ("Commission") is this day filing a motion for a TRO 

and an Order pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2) of the Clayton Act and Section 13(b) of the Federal 

Trade Commission Act to block the impending acquisition by defendant Blockcbuster, Inc. of 

Hollywood Entertainment Corporation ("Hollywood"). Annexed to the Commission's moving 

papers are documents ("Plaintiff's Statement of Points and Authorities in Support of Plaintiff's 

Motion for a TRO and for an Order Pursuant to 7A(g)(2) of the Clayton Act" and attachments 

exhibits in support thereof) that contain information supplied to the Commission by defendants 

and third parties. This information was provided to the Commission in confidence and has thus 

far been protected from public disclosure during the Commission's investigation by virtue of 

various statutory provisions, e.~., 15 U.S.C. $5 18a(h), 460 ,  and 57(b)-2. In keeping with these 

statutory provisions, the Commission believes the appropriate course in any ensuing court 

proceeding is to file such documents under seal and to notify the submitters that their information 



has been filed under seal, but should remain under seal only if, and to the extent that, it is 

confidential. 

The Commission has notified defendants and the thud parties of the ffing and has 

informed them that the documents and information discussed above will be filed under seal for 

the time being, until further order of the Court. In addition, the Commission will advise 

defendants and third parties that such protection is warranted only for confidential material 

deserving of "under seal" t-reatment and that, if any of the documents and information they 

provided to the Commission are not entitled to such protection, that material should be promptly 

removed from under seal and placed in the public file. 

Respectfully .submitted, 

John D. Graubert (DC Bar # 370670) 
Acting General Counsel 

Susan A. Creighton 
Director 

Director of Litigation 

Michael H. Knight 
Assistant Director, 

Bureau of Competition 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 
(202) 326-2475 

March 4.2005 



UNTE.D STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

BLOCKBUSTER, INC., 

Defendant. 

MOTION FOR AN ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE AND FOR A TEMPORARY 
RESTRAINING ORDER 

Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission ('FTC" or "Commission"), by its designated 

attorneys moves the Court, pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2) of the Clayton Act and Section 13@) of 

the Federal Trade Commission Act for an Order To Show Cause and for a Temporary 

Restraining Order to preserve the status quo by enjoining the acquisition by Blockbuster, Inc. 

(''E3loclcbuster") of any interest in Hollywood Entertainment Corporation ("Hollywood"), until 

further order of the court following a hearing on the Commission's motion for an order pursuant 

to Section 7A(g)(2) of the Clayton Act. The Commission does seek a ruling or relief at this 

time going to the merits of whether the proposed acquisition violates the antitrust laws. 

A Temporary Restraining Order pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2)of the Clayton Act and 

Section 13@) of the Federal Trade Commission Act enjoining the proposed acquisition until a 

hearing is conducted by the Court is needed to ensure Blockbuster's compliance with the 

premerger reporting requirements and appropriate waiting period so that the Commission can 

obtain and analyze the data and documents necessary to evaluate and determine whether the 



proposed acquisition will violate Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 

3 45, and Section 7 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 18, and if appropriate, to seek temporary 

relief for any substantial lessening of competition in the appropriate district court or permanent 

relief in an adminiseative adjudication of the merits. Unless a Temporary Restraining Order is 

issued, Blockbuster has indicated that it may begin acquing shares of Hollywood as early as 

March 11,2005. 

This motion is supported by a statement of points and authorities filed with the motion. 

Respectfully submitted, 

John D. Graubert ( DC Bar # 370670) 
Acting General Counsel 

Susan A. Creighton 
Director 

Director of Litigation 

Michael H. Knight 
Assistant Director 

Bureau of Competition 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 
(202) 326-2475 

March 4,2005 



UNTIED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

1 
1 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 1 Civil No. 

Plaintiff, 1 
1 

v. 1 
1 

BLOCKBUSTER, INC., 1 
1 

Defendant. ) 

NOTICE OF FILING UNDER SEAL OF PLAINTIFF'S STATEMENT OF POINTS 
AND AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFF'S MOTIONS FOR TRO 

AND FOR AN ORDER PURSUANT TO SECTION 7A(g)(2) OF TBE CLAYTON ACT 
AND SECTION 13(b) OF TJXE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT 

In accordance with LCvR 5.4(e)(l)-(2), notice is hereby given that, on March 4,2005, 

plaintiff in the above-captioned case filed under seal its statement of points and authorities in 

support of its motion for a TRO and for an Order pursuant to Section 7A(g)(7) of the Clayton 

Act, and Section 13(b) of the Federd Trade Commission Act. 

Respectfully submitted, 

March 4,2005 

I ~ i c h a e l  J. ~ l o k ,  Esq. 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 
(207) 326-2475 



TJhTIED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR TI-IE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

1 
1 

FEDERAZ. TRADE COMMISSION, 1 Civil No. 
1 

Plaintiff, 1 

v. 1 
1 

BLOCKBUSTER, INC., 1 
Defendant. ) 

1 

CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL PURSUANT TO LCvR 65.1 OF NOTICE OF 
APPLICATION FOR TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER 

C 

Pursuant to LCvR 65.1, I, Michael J. Bloom, hereby certify that on March 4,2005, I 

notified counsel for Blockbuster, Inc. of the time and place of the filing of a motion seeking a 

Temporary Restraining Order and of the Commission's intention to seek an immediate hearing 

on the motion. I further certfy that on March 4,2005, I caused one copy of all the pleadings and 

papers filed by the Federal Trade Commission in this action on March 4,2005 to be delivered to 

Wayne Dale Collins, Shearman & Sterling LLP, 599 Lexington Avenue, New York City, New 

York, 10022-4000 (wcollins@shearman.com) 

Michael J. Bloom 
Director of Litigation 
Bureau of Competition 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. 
Washington, D. C. 20580 
(202) 326-2475 



IN THE =D STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBh 

1 
1 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 1 
1 

Plaintiff, 1 
1 

v. Civil No. 
1 

BLOCKBUSTER, INC., 1 
Defendant. ) 

1 

PROPOSED] ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE 

This Cause arising upon the application of Plaintiff, Federal Trade Commission, for an 

order to show cause why a temporary restraining order and an order pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2) 

of the Clayton Act and Section 13@) of the Federal Trade Commissi~n Act should not issue, and 

it appearing from the allegations of the complaint and from the exhibits submitted in support of 

the application, that Plaintiff is entitled to such relief unless good cause to the contrary be shown, 

it is hereby, 

ORDERED, that Defendant Bloclcbuster appear before the Honorable 

a judge of this court, in Courtroom of the United States District Court for the District of 

Columbia, 333 Constitution Ave., N.W., Washington, D.C. 20001, on 

at , or as soon thereafter as counsel can be heard, and show cause why an 

order, pursuant to Rule 65 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, 18 U.S.C. 5 lSA(g)(2), and 



15 U.S.C. $53@), should not issue, temporarily restraining Blockbuster from acquiring any 

interest in HollywoodEntertainment Corporation, until a hearing can be held on the 

Commission's motion for an injunction requiring Bloclcbuster to comply with the premerger 

reporting requirements of Section 7A of the Clayton Act and the waiting periods mandated by 

that statute. 

Service of this order upon Blockbuster by Plaintiff shall be effected on or before 

arnlpm on March -, 2005. 

Entered this - day of March 2005 at- a.m.1p.m. 

United States District Judge 
Presented by: 

John D. Graubert (DC Bar# 370670) 
Acting General Counsel 

Susan A. Creighton 
Director 

Michael J. Bloom 
Director of Litigation 

Michael H. Knight 
Assistant Director 

Bureau of Competition 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 
(202) 326-2475 

March 4,2005 



ATTORNEYS ENTITLED TO NOTICE 

Michael J. Bloom, Esq. 
Federal Trade Commission 

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 

(202) 326-2475 

counsel for Federal Trade Commission 

Wayne Dale Collins, Esq. 
Shearman & Sterling 

599 Lexington Avenue, 
New Yorlc City, New Yorlc 10022-4000 

counsel for Blockbuster Inc. 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

1 
1 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 1 
I 

Plaintiff, 1 

v. 1 Civil No. 
1 

BLOCKBUSTER, INC., 1 
1 

Defendant. ) 
1 

[PROPOSED] TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER 

This matter has arisen from the Federal Trade Commission's ("Commission") complaint and 

motion for a temporary restraining order pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2) of the Clayton Act, 

15 U.S.C. 8 18a(g)(2), and Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(b) and Section 13(b) of the Federal Trade 

Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. (i 53(b). The Court has considered the Commission's statement of 

points and authorities and attachments in support thereof as well as defendant's response to the 

motion, and concludes that the issuance of a temporary restraining order is required to maintain 

the status quo by preventing defendant Blockbuster, Inc. ("Blockcbuster") from acquiring any 

interest in Hollywood Entertainment Corporation ("Hollywood"), until a hearing can be held on 

the Commission's motion for an injunction requiring Bloclcbuster to comply with the premerger 

reporting requirements of Section 7A of the Clayton Act and the waiting periods mandated by 

that statute. 



THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED 

(1) that defendant Blockbuster, its officers, agents, servants, employees and attorneys and all 

persons in active concert or participation with it who receive actual notice of this Order by 

personal service or otherwise are enjoined kom acquiring by any means, on behalf of defendant 

or any subsidiary thereof, any interest in Hollywood until further order of the Court, and 

(2) that a hearing shall be held at , on , regarding the Federal Trade 

Commission's emergency motion for an order pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2) of the Clayton Act 

seeking an injunction to require defendant to comply with the reporting and waiting period 

requirements of that Act before acquiring any interest in Hollywood. 

Entered this -day of March, 2005 at a.m.1p.m. 

Presented by: 

John D. Graubert @C Bar # 370670) 
Acting General Counsel 

Susan A. Creighton 
Director 

Michael J. Bloom 
Director of Litigation 

Michael H. Knight 
Assistant Director 

Bureau of Competition 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 
(202) 326-2475 

United States District Judge 



ATTORNEYS ENTITLED TO NOTICE 

Michael J. Bloom, Esq. 
Federal Trade Commission 

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 

(202) 326-2475 

counsel for Federal Trade  omm mission 

Wayne Dale Collins, Esq. 
Shearman & Sterling 

599 Lexington Avenue, 
New Yorlc City, New York 10022-4000 

counsel for Blockbuster Inc. 



UNlTED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

I 
1 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 
1 

Plaintiff, 
1 Civil No. 

v. 

I 
BLOCKBUSTER, INC., 1 

1 
~ e f e n d k t .  ) 

MOTION FOR ORDER PURSUANT TO SECTION 7A(g)(2) OF THE CLAYTON ACT 
AND SECTION 13(b) OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT 

Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission ("I;TC" or "Commission"), by its designated 

attorneys moves the Court, pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2) of the Clayton Act and Section 13@) of 

the Federal Trade Commission Act for an Order enjoining the acquisition by Bloclcbuster, Inc. 

("Bloclcbuster") of any interest in Hollywood Entertainment Corporation ("Hollywood"), until an 

appropriate time after Bloclcbuster has substantially complied with the premerger notification 

reporting requirements set forth in Section 7A of the Clayton Act. The Commission does 

seek a ruling or relief at this time going to the merits of whether the proposed acquisition violates 

the antitrust laws. 

An Order pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2) enjoining the proposed acquisition until 

Blockbuster complies with the premerger repohng requirements and observes an appropriate 

waiting period is needed so that the Commission can obtain and analyze the data and documents 

necessary to evaluate and determine whether the proposed acquisition will violate Section 5 of 

the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 45, and Section 7 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 



18, and if appropriate, to seek temporary relief for any substantial lessening of competition in 

the appropriate district court or permanent relief in an administrative adjudication of the merits. 

Unless an Order pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2) is issued, Blockbuster has indicated that it may 

begin acquiring shares of Hollywood on March 11,2005. 

This motion is supported by a statement of points and authorities filed herewith. 

The Commission respecthlly requests the oppomnity to present oral ar-ment in support 

of this motion. 

Respectfully submitted, 

John D. Graubert (DC Bar # 370670) 
Acting General Counsel 

Susan A. Creighton 
Director 

Director of Litigation 

Michael H. Knight 
Assistant Director 

Bureau of Competition 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 
(202) 326-2475 

\ 

March 4,2005 



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

1 
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 1 

Plaintiff, 1 
1 Civil No. 

v. 1 
1 

BLOCKBUSTER, INC., 1 

Defendant. ) 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Michael B1oom;hereby certify that on March 4,2005, I caused one copy of the 

Federal Trade Commission's Motion For Injunctive Relief Pursuant To Section 7A(g)(2) of the 

Clayton Act and Section 13@) of the Federal Trade Commission Act and attachments thereto to 

be served via electronic mail on Counsel for Defendant Blockbuster, Inc., Wayne Dale Collins, 

Esq. at wcollins@sheman.com. 

Director of Litigation 
Bureau of Competition 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. 
Washington, D. C. 20580 
(202) 326-2475 



TJNTIED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR TKE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

BLOCKBUSTER, NC., 

Defendant. 

[PROPOSED] 
ORDER PURSUANT TO SECTION 7A(g)(2) OF THE CLAYTON ACT 

AND SECTION 13@) OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT 

This proceeding having come before the Coua on the Federal Trade Commission's 

complaint and motion for an order pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2) of the Clayton Act and Section 

13@) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, and it appearing to the Court upon consideration of 

the complaint, supporting declarations and exhibits, other materials of record and the armwent 

of counsel: 

Findines of Fact 

1. The Commission is an adrmnistrative agency of the United States govemment 

with its principal offices at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW., Washington, D.C. 20580. The 

Commission is charged, among other things, with administering the premerger notification and 

waiting period requirements of Section 7A of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 18a, and enforcing 

Section 7 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 18, and Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 45, by 

preventing acquisitions that may substantially lessen competition in any line of commerce in any 



section of the country. The Commission is also authorized to seek preliminary injunctions 

whenever it has reason to believe these laws are being violated P C  Act 5 13(b), 15 U.S.C. 5 

53), and to enforce the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvement Act's reporting and waiting 

period requirements (Clayton Act 5 7A, 15 U.S.C. 5 18a). 

2. Blockbuster is incorporated in the State of Delaware with its principal place of 

business in Texas. Blockbuster is the largest movie and video game rental outlet in the United 

States. It operates approximately 4,600 company stores across the United States, and franchises 

approximately 1,800 additional store locations. Blockbuster estimates its U.S. revenues for fiscal 

year 2004 at $4.2 billion. 

3. On December 28,2004, Blockbuster announced its intention to launch a cash 

tender offer to purchase all of the outstanding shares of Hollywood in a transaction valued at 

approximately $1 billion (including Bloclbuster's assumption of Hollywood debt outstanding).' 

Hollywood is a leading United States movie and video game rental outlet, second only to 

Bloclcbuster in revenues. Hollywood operates nearly 2,000 store locations in the United States, 

and estimates its U.S. revenues for fiscal 2004 at $1.8 billion. 

4. On December 28,2004, Blockbuster filed a premerger Notification and Report 

Form in connection with its announced intention to launch a tender offer for the outstanding 

shares of Hollywood. As part of that filing, Edward B. Stead, Blockbuster's Executive Vice 

President, General Counsel, and Executive Vice President Business Development, certified that 

the filing was "true, correct, and complete." 

I Blockbuster has modified or supplemented its offer twice since its original 
announcement. On February 2,2005, it announced that it was raising its initial offer of $11.50 
per share (payable in cash) to $14.50 (payable in a combination of $11.50 in cash and $3.00 in 
Bloclcbuster stock). On February 11,2005, it announced the commencement of a tender offer to 
purchase for cash $225 million in debt previously issued by Hollywood. 



5. On January 12,2005, the Commission, pursuant to Section 7A(e)(l) of the 

Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 18a(e)(l), and 16 C.F.R. $ 803.20, issued to Blockbuster arequest for 

additional information and documentary material relevant to the proposed acquisition (the 

"Second Request"). Included within this Second Request was Specification 17, which required 

Blockbuster to produce specific categories of data for each company store relating to, among 

other things, each store's pricing, non-price terms, incentive progams, late fees, membership 

fees, discounts, and other benefits offered to customers. The SecondRequest also contained 

Instruction W, which instmcted Blockbuster to indicate for each question it is unable to answer 

fully, "why such answer is incomplete, the efforts made by the company to obtain the 

information, and the source from which the complete answer may be obtained." 

6. On February 4,2004: Blockbuster, through its Vice-president and Senior 

Corporate Counsel, Judy C. Nonis, certified under oath, pursuant to 16 C.F.R. 5 803.6, that it 

had substantially complied with the Commission's Second Request by submitting the 

information and materials specified in the Second Request. 

7. Commission staff discovered that Blockbuster failed to provide a complete 

response to the Second Request. The certification of substantial compliance with the 

Commission's Second Request, filed by Blockbuster on February 4,2005, was inaccurate 

because Blockbuster's response to the Second Request was deficient. Specifically, Blockcbuster 

provided inaccurate data in response to the request in Specification 17(a) for pricing data, which 

information was actually used by the Commission's staff in statistical analysis that proved to be 

flawed and useless in the analysis of the proposed transaction. Moreover, Blockbuster's response 

to Specification 17(e) requesting information on "any late fees applied to late returns of rentals" 



was incomplete, and Blockbuster failed to respond to Specification 20 of the Second Request, 

except to state that a response would be "impractical." 

8. Blockbuster's Response to the Second Request, filed and certified as complete on 

February 4,2005, was incomplete insofar as it failed to provide the data responsive to 

Specifications 17 and 20. 

9. After reviewing Blockbuster's response to the Second Request, Commission staff 

notifiedBloclcbuster's counsel in two letters, both datedFebruary 24,2005, of the deficiencies 

that had been identified in that submission. Each of those letters clearly states that it constitutes a 

notice of deficiency under 16 C.F.R. 5 803.10(~)(2), and that therefore the statutory waiting 

periods specified in 16 C.F.R. $5 803.10@)(2)(i) and 803.10@)(2)(ii) have not begun. 

10. By failing to supply a complete and accurate response to Specifications 17(a) and 

17(e), Bloclcbuster has failed to comply with the premerger notification requirements set out in 

Section 7A(e)(2) of the Clayton Act and 16 C.F.R. $ 803.10(~)(2). The statutory waiting period 

has not begun, and will not begin, unless and until Bloclcbuster substantially complies with the 

Commission's request for additional information by providing complete responses as mandated 

by Section 7A(e)(2) and 16 C.F.R. 5 803.10(~)(2). 

Conclusions of Law 

11. This is a statutory cause of action against a party who failed to file a sufficient 

premerger submission in this district. This Court has jurisdiction over the defendants and over 

the subject matter of this action pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2) of the Clayton Act, Section 13@) of 

the FTC Act, and 28 U.S.C. 55  1331,1337,1345. 



12. Venue is proper pursuant to Section 12 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 22, and 28 

U.S.C. 5 1391@), and (c), because the cause of action arose in this district, where Blockbuster 

was required, but failed, to file a sufficient premerger filing. 

13. Section 7A(a) of the Clayton Act, as amended by Pub. L. 106-553, 114 Stat. 2762 

("2000 Amendments"), requires persons with more than $100 million in total assets or net sales 

to file premerger notification reports with the Commission before acquiring, directly or in- 

directly, more than $50 million in voting securities or assets of any person engaged in 

manufacturing with total assets or annual net sales of $10 million. 

14. The premerger Notification and Report Form requires filing parties to submit "all 

studies, surveys, analyses and reports which were prepared by or for any officer(s) or director(s) 

... for the purpose of evaluating or analyzing the acquisition with respect to market shares, 

competition, compehtors, markets, potential for sales growth or expansion into product or 

geographic markets." 

15. Section 7A@) provides that upon filing a premerger notification report, a party 

wishing to make an acquisition must delay consummating the transaction for at least 30 days (15 

m the case of a cash tender offer) in order to give the Commission an opportunity to review the 

transact~on and detemine whether to investigate the transaction further or challenge it. 

16. Section 7A(e) provides that, during the 15-day waiting period in the case of cash 

tender offers, the Commission may request additional information or documentary material 

relevant to the proposed transaction. The effect of making such a request for additional 

information is to extend the waiting period for consummation of the acquisition until 10 days (in 

the case of a cash tender offer) after the date on which the Commission receives a complete re- 

sponse to its request for additional information. Id.; 16 C.F.R. § 803.20(c). A complete response 



is one that either: (a) sets forth all the information and provides all the documentary material 

required to be submitted pursuant to the request; or (b) in the event a person is unable to provide 

a complete response, a detailed statement of reasons for non-compliance in accordance with 16 

C.F.R. 5 803.3. Section 7A(e)(2) further provides that if a proper submission is made under that 

Section, the ten-day (in the case of a cash tender offer) waiting period extension begins, although 

it may be further extended by a United States district court on application by the Commission 

pursuant to Section 7A(g)(2), if the acquiring person (in the case of a cash tender offer) has not 

substantially complied with the request for additional information. 

17. Section 7A(g)(2) of the Clayton Act provides that if any person fails substantially 

to comply with the notification requirement or with any request for the submission of additional 

information or documentary material pursuant to Section 7A(e)(l), a United States district court, 

upon application of the Commission, "shall extend the waiting period ... until there bas been 

substantial compliance." Section 7A(g)(2) further provides that, upon application, the district 

court "may order compliance" and "may grant such other equitable relief as the court in its dis- 

cretion determines necessary or appropriate." 

18. Blockcbuster failed substantially to comply with the with the request for 

submission of additional information or documentary material pursuant to Section 7A(e)(l). 

19 . Unless enjoined by this Court, Blockbuster has indicated its intention to con- 

summate the transaction as early as March 11,2005. Accordingly, an order pursuant to 7A(g)(2) 

and an injunction enjoining consummation are necessary to ensure compliance with the 

requirements of Section 18A of the Clayton Act and to give the Commission and its staff the 

time provided by Congress for evaluation of the proposed acquisition. 



NOW THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that defendant Blockbuster, its officers, agents, 

servants, employees and attorneys and all persons in active concert or participation with it who 

receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise are enjoined from acquiring 

by any means, on behalf of defendant or any subsidiary thereof, any assets of the Hollywood, or 

any subsidiary, predecessor or successor thereof until the expiration of until the date on which 

(1) Blockcbuster has substantially complied with the Commission's Second Request for additional 

information to Bloclcbuster concerning the proposed acquisition sent pursuant to the Hart-Scott- 

Rodino Amendments to the Clayton Act ("HSR"), 15 U.S.C. 57a; (2) Bloclcbuster has recertified 

its substantial compliance with the Second Request; and (3) the 30 day post-certification waiting 

period provided by the HSR has run its course, which in no event shall be deemed to occur prior 

to April 2,2005, or a court has enjoined the proposed transaction on the merits. 

Entered this - day of ,2005 

United States District Judge 

Presented by: 

John D. Graubert (DC Bar# 370670) 
Acting General Counsel 

Susan A. Creighton, Director 
Michael J. Bloom, Director of Litigation 
Michael H. Knight, Assistant Director 
Bureau of Competition 

Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 
(202) 326-2475 



ATTORNEYS ENTITLED TO NOTICE 

Michael J. Bloom, Esq. 
Federal Trade Commission 

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W 
Washington, D.C. 20'580 

(202) 326-2475 

counsel for Federal Trade Commission 

Wayne Dale Collins, Esq. 
Shearman & Sterling 

599 Lexington Avenue, 
New York City, New York 10022-4000 

counsel for Blockbuster Inc. 


